
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

________________________________________________ 
 

Tuesday, 10 February 2009 at 7.00 p.m. 
______________________________________ 

 

A G E N D A 
__________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
M71, 7th Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, 

E14 2BG 
 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 
Chair: Councillor Abdul Asad  
Vice-Chair:Councillor Bill Turner   
  
  
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain 
Councillor Waiseul Islam 
Councillor Ann Jackson 
Councillor Shiria Khatun 
Councillor Abjol Miah 
Councillor Oliur Rahman 
Councillor A A Sardar 
Councillor David Snowdon 
 

Councillor M. Shahid Ali, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Abdul 
Asad, Waiseul Islam, Ann Jackson, Shiria 
Khatun, A. A. Sardar and Bill Turner) 
Councillor Tim Archer, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Ahmed 
Hussain and David Snowdon) 
Councillor Lutfa Begum, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Oliur 
Rahman) 
Councillor Peter Golds, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Ahmed 
Hussain and David Snowdon) 
Councillor Carli Harper-Penman, 
(Designated Deputy representing 
Councillors Abdul Asad, Waiseul Islam, 
Ann Jackson, Shiria Khatun, A. A. Sardar 
and Bill Turner) 
Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan, 
(Designated Deputy representing 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton) 
Councillor Rania Khan, (Designated 



 
 
 
 

Deputy representing Councillor Oliur 
Rahman) 
Councillor Abdul Matin, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Stephanie 
Eaton) 
Councillor Fozol Miah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Harun Miah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Tim O'Flaherty, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Stephanie 
Eaton) 
Councillor M. Mamun Rashid, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Salim Ullah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Abdul 
Asad, Waiseul Islam, Ann Jackson, Shiria 
Khatun, A. A. Sardar and Bill Turner) 
 

[Note: The quorum for this body is 4 voting Members]. 
 
Co-opted Members:  
2 Vacancies  -   Parent Governor Representative 
Mr D McLaughlin – Roman Catholic Diocese of Westminster 

Representative 
Mr H Mueenuddin – Muslim Community Representative 
Vacancy – Church of England Diocese Representative 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Amanda Thompson, Democratic Services,  
Tel: 020 7364 4651, E-mail: amanda.thompson@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

Tuesday, 10 February 2009 
 

7.00 p.m. 
 

 SECTION ONE 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

  
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

3 - 8  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 13 January 2009. 
 
 

  

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 

  

 To be notified at the meeting. 
 

  

5. REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATIONS  
 

  

 To be notified at the meeting. 
 

  

6. SECTION ONE REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

 There were no Section One reports ‘called in’ from the 
meeting of Cabinet held on 14 January 2009. 
 

  

7. BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK ITEMS  
 

  

7 .1 General Fund Budget Requirement & Council Tax 
2009/10 & Medium Term Financial Plan 2009/10 to 
2011/12   

 

  

7 .2 Capital Programme 2009/10 & Indicative Programme 
2010/11 to 2011/12   

 
  

 (Total time allocated for items 7.1 and 7.2 – 60 minutes)   



 
 
 
 
 
Note: 
The report and appendices comprising the General Fund 
Budget Requirement and Council Tax 2009/2010 and 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2009/10 to 2011/12 and the 
Capital Programme 2009/10 and Indicative Programme 
2010/11 to 2011/12 are being circulated as a 
supplementary agenda pack in conjunction with the 
agenda for the Cabinet meeting of the 11th of February 
2009. 
 
*Please bring the supplementary pack to the Overview and 
Scrutiny meeting. 
 

8. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  
 

  

8 .1 Tower Hamlets Index  - Monitoring Report October-
November 2009   

 
9 - 22  

 (Time allocated – 15 minutes) 
 

  

9. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT - LEAD MEMBER  
 

  

 The Lead Member for Culture, Councillor Rofique U. 
Ahmed, will attend to report on his portfolio. 
 
(Time allocated – 30 minutes) 
 
 

  

10. VERBAL UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY LEADS  
 

  

 (Time allocated – 5 minutes each) 
 

  

11. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION ONE 
(UNRESTRICTED) CABINET PAPERS  

 

  

 (Time allocated – 10 minutes). 
 
 

  

12. ANY OTHER SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO 
BE URGENT  

 

  

  
 

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the agenda the Committee is 

recommended to adopt the following motion: 
 
“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the press and 
public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting for the consideration of the Section 
Two business on the grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in Part 1 of 



 
 
 
 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972.” 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (Pink Papers) 
 

The exempt committee papers in the agenda will contain information, which is commercially, 
legally or personally sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  If you do not wish 
to retain these papers after the meeting, please hand them to the Committee Officer present. 
 

  
 

14. SECTION TWO REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

 There were no Section Two reports ‘called in’ from the 
meeting of Cabinet held on 14 January 2009. 
 
 

  

15. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION TWO 
(RESTRICTED) CABINET PAPERS  

 

  

 (Time allocated 10 minutes). 
 

  

16. ANY OTHER SECTION TWO (RESTRICTED) 
BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS 
URGENT  

 

  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\5\AI00018505\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
FOR MEMBERS OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\5\AI00018505\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
There are particular rules relating to a prejudicial interest arising in relation to Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees 
 
• You will have a prejudicial interest in any business before an Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

or sub committee meeting where both of the following requirements are met:- 
 

(i) That business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or action taken 
by the Council’s Executive (Cabinet) or another of the Council’s committees, sub 
committees, joint committees or joint sub committees 

 
(ii) You were a Member of that decision making body at the time and you were present at 

the time the decision was made or action taken. 
 
• If the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is conducting a review of the decision which you were 

involved in making or if there is a ‘call-in’ you may be invited by the Committee to attend that 
meeting to answer questions on the matter in which case you must attend the meeting to 
answer questions and then leave the room before the debate or decision.   

 
• If you are not called to attend you should not attend the meeting in relation to the matter in 

which you participated in the decision unless the authority’s constitution allows members of 
the public to attend the Overview & Scrutiny for the same purpose.  If you do attend then you 
must declare a prejudicial interest even if you are not called to speak on the matter and you 
must leave the debate before the decision. 

 

Page 2



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/01/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.00 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 13 JANUARY 2009 
 

ROOM M71, 7TH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Chair) 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Abjol Miah 
Councillor A A Sardar 
Councillor David Snowdon 
Councillor Bill Turner (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Lutfa Begum (In place of Councillor Shiria Khatun) 
Councillor Peter Golds (In place of Councillor Ahmed Hussain) 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
 
Councillor Clair Hawkins – Lead Member Children’s Services 
 

 
Officers Present: 
 
Lutfur Ali – (Assistant Chief Executive) 
Suki Binjal – (Interim Head of Legal Services - Community, 

Chief Executive's) 
Kevan Collins – (Corporate Director, Children's Services) 
Afazul Hoque – (Acting Scrutiny Policy Manager, Scrutiny and 

Equalities, Chief Executive's) 
Michael Keating – (Service Head Scrutiny & Equalities, Chief 

Executive's) 
 

Amanda Thompson – (Team Leader - Democratic Services) 
 
 
 

1. SUKI BINJAL  - LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  
 
The Chair, Councillor Abdul Asad, informed the Committee that this was the 
last meeting that would be supported by Suki as she would shortly be leaving 
the Council. 
 
On behalf of the Committee, he thanked Suki for all her hard work and 
support and wished her well for the future. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/01/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
2. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP  

 
The Chair reported that Councillors David Snowden and Ahmed Hussain had 
recently been appointed to the Committee, and he welcomed Councillor 
Snowden who was present to his first meeting. 
 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ahmed Hussain, 
Waiseul Islam, Ann Jackson and Shiria Khatun. 
 
Councillors Peter Golds and Lutfa Begum were present as substitutes for 
Councillors Hussain and Khatun. 
 
Councillor Sirajul Islam, Deputy Leader of the Council, also presented his 
apologies as he had been expected to attend the meeting and present 
agenda item 8.1 – Diversity and Equality Action Plan 2008/2009. 
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 
 

5. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2008 be 
agreed as a correct record. 
 
 

6. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 
None. 
 
 

7. REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATIONS  
 
Suki Binjal, Interim Legal Services Manager, informed Members that a 
representative from the Disability Coalition was present at the meeting and 
wished to make a deputation in relation to agenda item 8.1 – Diversity and 
Equality Action Plan 2008/2009. The representative had advised her that she 
had only very recently been sent a copy of the meeting agenda and therefore 
had not submitted her request before the deadline. 
 
Ms Binjal stated that in accordance with the Council Procedure Rules at Part 
4.1 of the Council’s Constitution (Rule 20.1), the deadline for receipt of 

Page 4



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/01/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

deputation requests had passed, however it was open to the Committee to 
consider whether to suspend the rule to enable the deputation to address the 
Committee. 
 
The Committee agreed that Council Procedure Rule 20.1 be suspended in 
order to allow the Committee to consider whether or not to hear the 
deputation.  This motion was put to the meeting and was agreed. 
 
Following discussion the committee voted on whether to hear the deputation 
and agreed that it would do so. It was further agreed that this should be done 
immediately prior to consideration of the relevant agenda item. 
 
 

8. SECTION ONE REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 
There were no Section One reports ‘called in’ from the meeting of Cabinet 
held on 3 December 2008. 
 
 

9. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT - LEAD MEMBER  
 
Councillor Clair Hawkins, Lead Member for Children’s Services, gave a 
presentation on the key issues, opportunities and challenges arising from her 
portfolio. 
 
She informed the Committee that 41% of secondary school students were 
achieving 5 A* - C GCSEs, including English and Maths, which was closing 
the gap towards the national average of 47%. The Borough’s 11 year olds 
were currently outperforming the national average in Maths, and the lowest 
ever levels of NEETS (not in education, employment or training) had been 
recorded. She further informed the Committee about the outstanding ‘JAR’ 
and APA judgements which had given top marks in all the service areas 
assessed, as well as the Council attaining Beacon status for reducing 
reoffending. 
 
Councillor Hawkins went on to highlight the key priorities of Children’s 
Services. These included tackling child poverty, ensuring a stronger 
engagement with parents and support for families - with a focus on early 
intervention; the building of community participation, engagement and 
cohesion through access to youth services, cultural activities and leisure 
opportunities.   
 
Councillor Hawkins ended her presentation by highlighting the key targets for 
the coming year, which included reducing the proportion of children in child 
poverty by 43.5%, and reducing obesity among primary school age children in 
Year 6 by 23.6%.  
 
In response to questions Councillor Hawkins advised that an additional one 
million pounds had been allocated to Youth Service over the next two years in 
order to fund increased working hours to make the service more accessible to 

Page 5



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/01/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

young people. This would also help enable early intervention for those at risk 
of offending.  
 
Currently the targets for reducing child obesity were not particularly stretching 
as it was necessary to actually curb the rise of obesity before attempting to 
reduce it. 
 
Agency staff were vital to the functioning of Children’s Services as it was so 
difficult to recruit permanent staff, and also the number of children requiring 
help was continuing to rise. However, she assured Members that work was 
on-going to recruit staff on a permanent basis. 
 
The ‘Building Schools for the Future’ programme was making good progress 
and had already made a huge impact on children and families. 
 
A number of the LAA targets had been deferred as the Government had not 
yet set a benchmark for these. 
 
School attendance had improved although work was still needed to focus on 
extended holidays taken during term time and children who were persistently 
absent. A few schools had also started closing for Eid and others were being 
encouraged to do the same in order to reduce the number of ‘absentees’ on 
this day. 
 
The Chair thanked Councillor Hawkins for her attendance and for her 
responses to the questions raised by members of the Committee. 
 
 

10. PERFORMANCE MONITORING  
 
 

10.1 Diversity and Equality Action Plan 2008/2009 - Six Monthly Monitoring 
Report  
 
The Chair welcomed the deputation and asked its representative to address 
the meeting. 
 
Angela Stanworth addressed the meeting on behalf of the Disability Coalition, 
and advised that she wished her comments to be regarded by the Committee 
as those of a ‘critical friend’. She stated that around 20% of the residents of 
Tower Hamlets were disabled in very different ways, and the Council needed 
to ensure that it was not excluding any particular group or disability.  
 
The role of the Disability Coalition was to ensure that disabled people were 
able to function as full citizens, as unfortunately this was not always the case. 
There was a need for the Council to engage with organisations like these, and 
ensure that the outcomes of its reviews were implemented. An ongoing issue 
had been the lack of disabled parking at the Council’s Ideas stores. 
 

Page 6



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/01/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

Members of the Committee asked a number of questions in relation to the 
type of problems faced by Tower Hamlets’ disabled residents particularly, 
preferred methods of engagement, and working in partnership. 
 
The Chair thanked Ms Stanworth for her attendance and presentation to the 
meeting. 
 
Michael Keating, Head of Scrutiny and Equalities, after outlining how the 
Council has worked with the Disability Coalition and other third sector groups, 
advised that the Council was currently establishing a Pan Disability Panel.  
This will consist of 2/300 residents and will be used to consult people with 
disabilities.  As well as consultation on broad questions there will also be 
specific focus groups established when required to deal with particular issues.   
Mr Keating also described the successful events for Bengali Disability 
Awareness Day and the International Day of the Disabled, both supported by 
the Council, which had taken place in recent months. 
 
Mr Keating then introduced the six monthly monitoring report of the Council’s 
Diversity and Equality Action Plan for 2008/9 which demonstrated that at six 
months, 76% of all milestones within the Plan had been met or were on target 
to be met within fixed timescales. This represented significant progress in a 
number of areas 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

11. SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT  
 
 

11.1 Acute Stroke and Major Trauma - Establishment of Pan London Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees  
 
Michael Keating, Head of Scrutiny and Equalities, introduced the report 
stating that the Committee had been asked to agree that Tower Hamlets 
participate and nominate a representative and a deputy to the Acute Stroke 
and Major Trauma Pan London Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Tower Hamlets participate and that Councillor Stephanie Eaton be 
appointed to the Acute Stroke and Major Trauma Pan London Joint Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee and Councillor Lutfa Begum be her Deputy. 
 
 

12. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
CABINET PAPERS  
 
No Section One pre-decision questions for Cabinet were submitted. 

Page 7



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
13/01/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

 
 

13. ANY OTHER SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) BUSINESS WHICH THE 
CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT  
 
No Section One urgent business was submitted. 
 
 

14. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
No Section Two business was submitted. 
 
 

15. SECTION TWO REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 
There were no Section Two reports ‘called-in’ from the meeting of Cabinet 
held on 3 December 2008. 
 
 

16. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION TWO (RESTRICTED) CABINET 
PAPERS  
 
No Section Two pre-decision  questions for Cabinet were submitted. 
 
 

17. ANY OTHER SECTION TWO (RESTRICTED) BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR 
CONSIDERS URGENT  
 
No Section Two urgent business was submitted. 
 
 
 
The meeting finished at 8.45p.m 
 
 
 
Councillor Abdul Asad, Chair 
 
 

Page 8



 
Committee 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 

Date 
 
10 February 2009 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda 
Item 
No. 
 

8.1 
 

Report of:  
 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Originating Officer(s):  
 
Jon Underwood, Service Head, Strategy 
and Performance 
 

Title:  
 
Tower Hamlets Index - Monitoring Report  
October-November 2008 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 

 
 
Summary 
 
1.1 This report introduces the fourth monitoring report for the new Tower Hamlets 

Index. The set of indicators that constitutes the new Tower Hamlets Index 
reflects the Strategic Plan 2008/09 and the new Local Area Agreement. This 
report covers the period October-November 2008. 

 
 The performance information is contained in the report: 

• Appendix 1 provides an overview of performance and comments on 
each Tower Hamlets Index (THI) indicator.  

• Members should note the new design layout of Appendix 1 as outlined 
in 3.1 

 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 This report is for discussion and comment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
 

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 9



Brief description of “back ground 
papers” 
Tower Hamlets Index Monitoring Reports 

Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to 
inspection. 
Lutfur Ali, 020 7364 4771 
Mulberry Place, 6th Floor 
 

 
 
3. Background 

 
3.1 The last time the Tower Hamlets Index was considered, CMT asked for the 

tables of data to be combined with the graphs, previously reported separately 
as Appendix 2. CMT also requested that a visual indication of previous 
performance against target and direction of performance be included in the 
tables.  
 
The new-style Appendix 1 contains: 
• Reference number and description for each indicator. 
• Name of responsible officer. 
• Indication of polarity (Good performance is Low/High). 
• Targets and actuals for the current period. 
• Actual data for the previous two periods (new). 
• Traffic Lights (Red/Amber/Green) for the current period. 
• Traffic Lights (Red/Amber/Green) for the previous two periods (new). 
• Arrows to compare current performance to the previous comparable period 

(new). 
• Year-end target. 
• Comment where performance is off target. 
• Graph illustrating in-year actual data and targets, previous annual actual 

and year-end target (new). 
 
Performance Indicators 
 
3.2 This is the fourth monitoring report for the new Tower Hamlets Index, covering 

the period October-November 2008. The set of indicators that constitutes the 
new Tower Hamlets Index reflects the Strategic Plan 2008/09 and the new 
Local Area Agreement. The Tower Hamlets Index is made up of 71 Strategic 
Indicators, as agreed by CMT and members.  These consist of: 
All the LAA indicators 
Some measures of corporate health (usually ex-BVPIs) 
Some measures of customer satisfaction (usually Annual Residents Survey) 

 
4. How We Are Doing 
 

4.1 Performance against the fourth regular monitoring of these indicators for the 
period October-November 2008/09 is set out in Appendix 1  

 
4.2 There are four months to the end of the year and comments will reflect steps 

taken to ensure targets are met.   
 

4.3 Targets have not been set for one indicator, although data is available. This 
data will be used as a baseline to set future targets: 

Page 10



Young people’s participation in positive activities. 
 

4.4 Of the 25 applicable indicators, 11 of the performance indicators (44%) are on 
track to achieve their end of year target (GREEN). Areas where performance 
is well above the estimated level for the end of November target are as 
follows:  
• First contact resolution of calls to Hot Lines (16% more calls resolved than 

targeted) 
• Number of serious acquisitive crimes per 1,000 population (13% fewer 

crimes than targeted – 18.55 crimes per 1,000 population compared to a 
target of 21.4 crimes) 

 
4.5 A total of 14 indicators (56%) are not meeting their October-November target, 

of which managers indicate that 4 (28.57%) are predicted to return to target by 
year end (AMBER), while 10 (71.43%) may not (RED).  Indicators that missed 
target by 10% or worse are: 
• Number of schools where fewer than 55% of pupils achieve level 4 or 

above in both English and Maths at KS2 (target was no more than 1 
school but actual was 4) 

• Number of schools where fewer than 30% of pupils achieve 5 or more A*-
C grades at GCSE and equivalent including GCSEs in English and Maths 
(target was no more than 1 school but based on provisional results there 
are three schools not achieving this threshold. When results are finalised 
this is expected to fall to two, as one is likely to exceed the threshold.) 

• Improved street cleanliness – graffiti (target was no more than 8% of 
streets with graffiti, actual was 16%) 

• Improved street cleanliness – fly posting (target was no more than 3% of 
streets with graffiti, actual was 5%) 

• Looked after children achieving 5 A*-C GCSEs (or equivalent) – including 
English and mathematics (target was six out of 30 children (17%), actual 
was four children (6.67%)) 

• Average waiting time for calls to Hot Lines to be answered (target was 30 
seconds, actual was 34 seconds) 

• Percentage of Undisputed Invoices Paid on Time (target was 97% paid on 
time, actual was 84.69%) 

• Number of working days/shifts lost to sickness absence per employee 
(target was 7.7 days off sick, actual was 8.56 days per employee) 

 
4.6 Compared to the last round of monitoring (Quarter 2 2008), the proportion of 

RED indicators has decreased slightly from 58.82% (20) to 52.17% (12). This 
can be partly attributed to the number and distribution of indicators available to 
report (11 fewer indicators can be reported at this time). One indicator that was 
GREEN in Q2 has turned AMBER (with a very slight variance) for this period: 
• Number of physical visits to public library premises per 1000 pop. (38 visits 

off target) 
 

4.7 The next monitoring report is the Quarter 3 joint performance and budget 
monitoring report (end of December 2008) when we will report on both 
Strategic and Priority indicators. 

 
5. Financial Performance Report 
 

Page 11



5.1  As reported to LAB on 3 December 2008, financial performance is within 
existing resources and therefore broadly sustainable. There continues to be a 
projected General Fund net underspend of £1.9m for the year against 
Directorate budgets as reported for the first six months of 2008-09. 

 
5.2  The biggest single factor contributing to the underspend relates to Council 

borrowing and investments. It is anticipated that the Council’s investment 
income will continue to benefit from favourable interest rates earlier in the year 
due to investment deals already entered into, and that reductions in bank base 
rates in recent months will not impact significantly until 2009/10.   

 
5.3. Notwithstanding the overall underspend, 4 out of 6 Directorates are reporting 

projected over spends and it will be important for these Directorates to 
continue to monitor their expenditure closely and to take steps to contain 
spending within their allocated budgets.  

 
5.4  Also, several directorates have identified risk areas primarily where volatility to 

costs or uncertainty concerning the projected outturn figure. These are 
primarily within facilities management and fluctuations in planning income.  

 
 
6. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations of 

this report.  Any specific financial implications relating to the performance 
indicators have been incorporated in the officer comments attached to this 
report. The financial implications of performance improvement are set out in 
relevant reports by officers throughout the year as part of the ongoing planning 
processes of the authority.   

 
 
7. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
7.1 The Council’s ambitious targets for service delivery are focused on meeting 

the needs of the diverse communities living in Tower Hamlets.  The Tower 
Hamlets Index reflects the priority the Council gives to equality and diversity 
issues, and includes specific equality indicators. 

 
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL) 
8.1 The Local Government Act 1999 places a duty on the Council to secure 

continuous improvement in the way its functions are exercised having regard 
to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  Performance 
monitoring using the Index combined with implementation of the Strategic Plan 
will assist in discharging that obligation. 

 
9. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
9.1 A number of the Indicators contribute directly towards a greener environment, 

including addressing abandoned cars, and improving the cleanliness of 
streets.  The Council will ensure that in monitoring and reporting on the Tower 
Hamlets Index, the environmental impact locally will be kept to a minimum.  

 
10. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

Page 12



10.1 In line with the Council’s risk management strategy, the implementation of the 
Tower Hamlets Index will assist the Cabinet, Corporate Directors and relevant 
service managers in delivering the ambitious targets set out in the Strategic 
Plan. Where any difficulties or slippage arise, the process will create an 
opportunity for Members and Corporate Directors to discuss remedial action 
and keep progress under regular review. 

 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



PI
 R
ef
 N
o

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Me

as
. 

In
Ac
tu
al
 

07
/0
8

Ac
tu
al
 

Ju
ly

Ac
tu
al
 

Se
p

Ac
tu
al
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

08
/0
9

Re
sp
on
sib

le
 

Of
fic
er

Tr
af
fic
 

Lig
ht

   
   
   
  T
re
nd

Str
ate

gic
10

1
Pe
rce
nt
ag
e o

f U
nd
isp
ut
ed
 

In
vo
ice
s P
aid
 on

 Ti
me

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e H

IG
H

%
87
.8
7

85
.5
5

85
.3
5

84
.6
9

97
97

Pa
ul 
Mc
De
rm
ot
t

Str
ate

gic
10

5
Nu
mb

er
 of
 w
or
kin
g 
da
ys
/sh

ift
s 

los
t t
o s
ick
ne
ss
 ab

se
nc
e p

er
 

em
plo
ye
e.

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

da
ys

8.
69

8.
88

8.
93

8.
56

7.
7

7.
5

De
b 
Cl
ar
ke

Str
ate

gic
10

6
Re
sp
on
se
 ti
me

 to
 m
em

be
rs 

en
qu
iri
es
 - 
%
 co
mp

let
ed
 w
ith
in 

10
 w
or
kin
g 
da
ys
 - 
Co
rp
or
at
e

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e H

IG
H

%
70
.0
6

74
.3
7

78
.9

86
.0
9

85
85

Be
ve
rle
y 

Mc
Ke
nz
ie

Str
ate

gic
10

7
Pe
rce
nt
ag
e o

f c
om

pla
int
s 

co
mp

let
ed
 in
 ti
me

 - 
Co
un
cil
 as
 a 

wh
ole
 - 
St
ag
e 1

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e H

IG
H

%
74

68
71

74
80

80
Ru
th
 D
ow
de
n

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 Im

pr
ov
em

en
ts 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
se
en
 ac
ro
ss
 al
l d
ire
cto
ra
te
 an

d 
in 
TH
H.
 A
ll a
ch
iev
ed
 ov

er
 8
0%

 in
 N
ov
em

be
r a
nd
 th
is 
lev
el 
of 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 is
 m
ain
ta
ine
d,
 th
e c
or
po
ra
te
 ta
rg
et
 w
ill 
be
 

ac
hie
ve
d 
for
 th
e r
oll
ing

 ye
ar
 b
y t
he
 en

d 
of 
20
08
/0
9.

Th
em

e 
1:
 O
ne
 T
ow

er
 H
am

le
ts

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 M
on
ito
rin
g 
of 
pa
ym

en
ts 
ma

de
 ou

tsi
de
 th
e d

efi
ne
d 
tim

es
ca
le 
co
nt
inu

es
 an

d 
th
e p

ro
ce
ss
es
 h
av
e b

ee
n 
th
e f
oc
us
 of
 a 
pe
er
 re
vie
w.

Th
e r
ev
iew

 h
as
 m
ad
e a

 n
um

be
r o
f p
ro
po
sa
ls 
cu
rre
nt
ly 
be
ing

 co
ns
ide
re
d 
by
 co
lle
ag
ue
s i
n 
int
er
na
l a
ud
it 
th
at
 w
ill 
ut
ilis
e e

lec
tro
nic
 in
vo
ice
 d
ist
rib
ut
ion
 an

d 
cir
cu
lat
ion
.

Th
e d

ec
lar
ed
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e i
s e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 d
et
er
ior
at
e f
ur
th
er
 as
 so
ftw

ar
e r
es
trc
itio

ns
 re
qu
ire
 th
e b

ac
kd
at
ing

 of
 in
vo
ice
s i
n 
or
de
r t
o p

re
-1
st 
De
ce
mb

er
 to
 en

su
re
 th
e c
or
re
ct 
lev
el 
of 
VA
T i
s p
aid
 an

d 
de
cla
re
d.

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 A
lth
ou
gh
 in
dic
at
or
 is
 R
ed
, t
he
 tr
en
d 
ha
s b
ee
n 
an
 ov

er
all
 re
du
cti
on
 in
 si
ck
ne
ss
 ab

se
nc
e s
inc
e t
he
 st
ar
t o
f t
he
 fi
na
nc
ial
 ye

ar
. M

on
th
 on

 m
on
th
 m
od
es
t r
ed
uc
tio
ns
 h
as
 re
su
lte
d 
in 

av
er
ag
e o

f n
um

be
r o
f d
ay
s f
all
ing

 b
y 0

.6
1 
da
ys
 p
er
 em

plo
ye
e w

hic
h 
is 
a s
ign

ific
an
t i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
. T
he
 fo
cu
s o
n 
sic
kn
es
s a
bs
en
ce
 co
nt
inu

es
 w
ith
 H
R 
su
pp
or
t a
nd
 im

pr
ov
ed
 re
po
rti
ng
.

G A

R A R A

R R A A

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 Y
ea

rly
 T

ar
ge

t
 M

on
th

ly 
Es

tim
at

e
20

07
/0

8 

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

20
07
/08

 Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

60
%

65
%

70
%

75
%

80
%

85
%

20
07
/08

Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

R R

75
%

80
%

85
%

90
%

95
%

10
0%

20
07
/08

Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

5678910

Ma
r

Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

1 
of

 8

Page 15



PI
 R
ef
 N
o

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Me

as
. 

In
Ac
tu
al
 

07
/0
8

Ac
tu
al
 

Ju
ly

Ac
tu
al
 

Se
p

Ac
tu
al
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

08
/0
9

Re
sp
on
sib

le
 

Of
fic
er

Tr
af
fic
 

Lig
ht

   
   
   
  T
re
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 Y
ea

rly
 T

ar
ge

t
 M

on
th

ly 
Es

tim
at

e
20

07
/0

8 

Str
ate

gic
10

9
Pe
rce
nt
 of
 ca
lls
 to
 H
ot
 Li
ne
s 

an
sw
er
ed

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e H

IG
H

%
N/
A

95
.3

93
.6

92
.9

95
95

Ke
ith
 Pa

uli
n

Str
ate

gic
11

0
Av
er
ag
e w

ait
ing

 ti
me

 fo
r c
all
s t
o 

Ho
t L
ine
s t
o b

e a
ns
we
re
d

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

Nu
mb

er
N/
A

30
39

34
30

30
Ke
ith
 Pa

uli
n

Str
ate

gic
11

1
Fir
st 
co
nt
ac
t r
es
olu
tio
n 
of 
ca
lls
 

to
 H
ot
 Li
ne
s

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e H

IG
H

%
N/
A

84
84

93
80

80
Ke
ith
 Pa

uli
n

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 A
lth
ou
gh
 st
ill 
ou
tsi
de
 of
 ta
rg
et
, t
he
re
 w
as
 m
ajo

r i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 on

 th
is 
ind

ica
to
r i
n 
No
ve
mb

er
 d
riv
en
 b
y a

 co
ns
ide
ra
ble
 re
du
cti
on
 in
 av

er
ag
e w

ait
 ti
me

 fo
r C
ou
nc
il T

ax
 ca
lls
.

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 re
ma

ins
 m
ar
gin

all
y b

elo
w 
ta
rg
et
 an

d 
dip

pe
d 
in 
No
ve
mb

er
 d
riv
en
 b
y a

 d
ro
p 
in 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 on

 th
e h

igh
-v
olu
me

 h
ou
sin
g 
re
pa
irs
 H
ot
 Li
ne
 d
ue
 to
 w
or
klo
ad
 p
ea
ks
. 

Cu
rre
nt
 im

pr
ov
em

en
ts 
in 
av
er
ag
e w

ait
ing

 ti
me

s (
St
ra
te
gic
 1
10
) s
ho
uld

 re
du
ce
 th
e l
ev
el 
of 
ab
an
do
ne
d 
ca
lls
 in
 fu
tu
re
 m
on
th
s.

G G G

A A G

R GA

91
%

92
%

93
%

94
%

95
%

96
%

20
07
/08

 Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

01020304050

20
07
/08

Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

76
%

78
%

80
%

82
%

84
%

86
%

20
07
/08

Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

2 
of

 8

Page 16



PI
 R
ef
 N
o

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Me

as
. 

In
Ac
tu
al
 

07
/0
8

Ac
tu
al
 

Ju
ly

Ac
tu
al
 

Se
p

Ac
tu
al
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

08
/0
9

Re
sp
on
sib

le
 

Of
fic
er

Tr
af
fic
 

Lig
ht

   
   
   
  T
re
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 Y
ea

rly
 T

ar
ge

t
 M

on
th

ly 
Es

tim
at

e
20

07
/0

8 

Str
ate

gic
20

2
Nu
mb

er
 of
 p
hy
sic
al 
vis
its
 to
 

pu
bli
c l
ibr
ar
y p

re
mi
se
s p
er
 1
00
0 

po
pu
lat
ion

Cu
mu

lat
ive
 m
ea
su
re

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e H

IG
H

nu
mb

er
97
10
.7

31
39

47
25

62
55

62
93

94
38
.9

He
at
he
r 

Bo
nf
iel
d

Str
ate

gic
21

1
Pe
rce
nt
ag
e o

f h
ou
se
ho
ld 
wa
ste
 

se
nt
 fo
r r
eu
se
, r
ec
yc
lin
g 
an
d 

co
mp

os
tin
g

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e H

IG
H

%
12
.8
9

15
.0
8

15
.2
8

18
.1
3

17
.4

19
Ja
mi
e B

lak
e

Str
ate

gic
21

2
Im
pr
ov
ed
 st
re
et
 an

d 
en
vir
on
me

nt
al 
cle
an
lin
es
s -
 lit
te
r

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

%
13
.0
0

N/
A

12
.0
0

12
.0
0

12
.0
0

12
.0
0

Ja
mi
e B

lak
e

Str
ate

gic
21

3
Im
pr
ov
ed
 st
re
et
 an

d 
en
vir
on
me

nt
al 
cle
an
lin
es
s -
 

de
tri
tu
s

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

%
15
.0
0

N/
A

16
.0
0

13
.5
0

13
.0
0

13
.0
0

Ja
mi
e B

lak
e

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 B
i-m

on
th
ly 
ac
tu
al 
is 
99
.4
%
 of
 ta
rg
et
 - 
Pr
og
ra
mm

es
 an

d 
ev
en
ts 
pla
nn
ed
 on

 al
l s
ite
s. 
Pu
bli
cit
y i
s i
n 
pr
od
uc
tio
n 
no
w 
an
d 
wi
ll b

e r
ele
as
ed
 n
ex
t w

ee
k. 
Fe
br
ua
ry
 an

d 
Ma
rch

 sh
ou
ld 
pic
k 

up
 lib

ra
ry
 vi
sit
s. 
En
d 
of 
ye
ar
 ta
rg
et
 w
ill 
be
 m
et
.

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 Th

e f
igu

re
s s
ho
wn
 ar
e O

cto
be
r f
igu

re
s o
nly
 as
 N
ov
em

be
r f
igu

re
s n
ee
d 
to
 b
e c
on
fir
me

d 
by
 ou

r R
ec
yc
lin
g 
Di
sp
os
al 
co
nt
ra
cto
r V
iri
do
r. 
Th
is 
is 
du
e t
o a

ctu
al 
co
nt
am

ina
tio
n 
fig
ur
es
 n
ot
 

be
ing

 fi
na
lis
ed
. A
 re
vie
w 
of 
th
e s
pli
t b
et
we
en
 h
ou
se
ho
ld 
wa
ste
 an

d 
co
mm

er
cia
l w
as
te
 w
as
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
in 
Oc
to
be
r w

hic
h 
ide
nt
ifie
d 
th
at
 th
e C

ou
nc
il w

as
 u
nd
er
 re
po
rti
ng
 co
mm

er
cia
l w
as
te
 co
lle
cte
d.
 A
s a
 re
su
lt,
 

to
ta
l r
es
idu

al 
ho
us
eh
old
 w
as
te
 co
lle
cte
d 
ha
s d
ec
re
as
ed
 an

d 
th
e r
ec
yc
lin
g 
pr
op
or
tio
n 
ha
s s
ee
n 
gr
ea
t i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 Tr
an
ch
e2
 re
su
lt 
wa
s 1
1%

 so
 av

er
ag
e w

ith
 T1

 is
 1
3.
5%

. A
 sc
or
e s
im
ila
r t
o T

2 
in 
tra
nc
he
 3
 w
ill 
en
su
re
 ta
rg
et
 is
 re
ac
he
d.

Th
em

e 
2:
 A
 G
re
at
 P
la
ce
 to

 Li
ve

G

A A

G R

G

G R

0
20
00

40
00

60
00

80
00

10
00
0

12
00
0 20

07
/08

 Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

20
07
/08

 Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

11
.5

12
.0

12
.5

13
.0

13
.5

20
07
/08

Se
p (

Q2
)

No
v

Ma
r (Q

4)

05101520

20
07
/08

Se
p (

Q2
)

No
v

Ma
r (Q

4)

AA

3 
of

 8

Page 17



PI
 R
ef
 N
o

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Me

as
. 

In
Ac
tu
al
 

07
/0
8

Ac
tu
al
 

Ju
ly

Ac
tu
al
 

Se
p

Ac
tu
al
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

08
/0
9

Re
sp
on
sib

le
 

Of
fic
er

Tr
af
fic
 

Lig
ht

   
   
   
  T
re
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 Y
ea

rly
 T

ar
ge

t
 M

on
th

ly 
Es

tim
at

e
20

07
/0

8 

Str
ate

gic
21

4
Im
pr
ov
ed
 st
re
et
 an

d 
en
vir
on
me

nt
al 
cle
an
lin
es
s -
 

gr
aff
iti

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

%
14
.0
0

N/
A

18
.0
0

16
.0
0

8.
00

8.
00

Ja
mi
e B

lak
e

Str
ate

gic
21

5
Im
pr
ov
ed
 st
re
et
 an

d 
en
vir
on
me

nt
al 
cle
an
lin
es
s -
 fl
y-

po
sti
ng

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

%
6.
00

N/
A

5.
00

5.
00

3.
00

3.
00

Ja
mi
e B

lak
e

PI
 R
ef
 N
o

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Me

as
. 

In
Ac
tu
al
 

07
/0
8

Ac
tu
al
 

Ju
ly

Ac
tu
al
 

Se
p

Ac
tu
al
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

08
/0
9

Re
sp
on
sib

le
 

Of
fic
er

Tr
af
fic
 

Lig
ht

   
   
   
  T
re
nd

Str
ate

gic
30

6
Yo
un
g 
pe
op
le’
s p
ar
tic
ipa
tio
n 
in 

po
sit
ive
 ac
tiv
itie

s

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e H

IG
H

%
N/
R

N/
R

N/
R

54
N/
R

N/
A

Ma
ry
 D
ur
kin

Ne
w 
da

ta 
- tr

en
d g

rap
h n

ot 
av

ail
ab

le.
Ta

rge
ts 

wil
l b

e s
et 

no
w 
ba

se
lin

e h
as

 be
en

 
es

tab
lish

ed
.

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 In
 th
e 2

00
8 
Te
llu
s 3
 S
ur
ve
y 5

4%
 (c
om

pa
re
d 
to
 N
at
ion
al 
62
%
) o
f c
hil
dr
en
 su
rv
ey
ed
 p
ar
tic
ipa
te
d 
in 
an
y g

ro
up
 ac
tiv
ity
 le
d 
by
 an

 ad
ult
 ou

tsi
de
 sc
ho
ol 
les
so
ns
 ( 
su
ch
 as
 sp
or
ts,
 ar
ts,
 or
 

a y
ou
th
 g
ro
up
). 
Th
er
e a

re
 n
o c
om

pa
ris
on
 re
su
lts
 as
 th
is 
qu
es
tio
n 
wa
s n
ot
 as
ke
d 
in 
Te
llu
s2
 2
00
7.
 Th

is 
is 
ba
se
lin
e r
es
ult
s.

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 Tr
an
ch
e 2

 re
su
lt 
wa
s 1
4%

 th
us
 av

er
ag
e o

f T
1 
an
d 
T2
 is
 1
6%

. T
ar
ge
t o
f 8
%
 w
ill 
no
t b
e m

et
. A
 sc
or
e o

f z
er
o i
n 
Tr
an
ch
e 3

 w
ill 
me

an
 an

 ov
er
all
 an

nu
al 
sc
or
e o

f 1
1-
12
%
. T
he
 d
ou
bli
ng
 

of 
th
e g

ra
ffi
ti 
re
mo

va
l r
es
ou
rce
s i
n 
Au
gu
st 
ap
pe
ar
s t
o h

av
e l
ed
 to
 a 
be
tte
r s
co
re
 in
 tr
an
ch
e 2

, h
ow
ev
er
, m

or
e n

ee
ds
 to
 b
e d

on
e. 
A 
gr
aff
iti 
str
at
eg
y i
s b
ein
g 
de
ve
lop
ed
 to
 in
clu
de
 ed

uc
at
ion
 an

d 
co
mm

un
ica
tio
n 

ab
ou
t t
he
 re
al 
gr
aff
iti 
im
pa
cts
, r
ap
id 
re
mo

va
l a
nd
 u
se
 of
 an

t-g
ra
ffi
ti 
co
at
ing

s a
nd
 m
or
e e

ffe
cti
ve
 en

for
ce
me

nt
 w
ith
 a 
re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 
for
 a 
de
dic
at
ed
 an

ti-
gr
aff
iti 
(a
nd
 Fl
y-
po
sti
ng
) t
ea
m 
wi
th
in 
th
e L
ET
s. 
Th
e 

iss
ue
 of
 st
at
ut
or
y g

ra
ffi
ti 
re
mo

va
l n
ot
ice
s w

ill 
be
 im

ple
me

nt
ed
 ve

ry
 ea

rly
 in
 2
00
9.
 Im

pa
cts
 of
 th
e s
ta
tu
to
ry
 w
ill 
no
t b
e f
elt
 u
nt
il 2

00
9/
10
.

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 Tr
an
ch
e 2

 re
su
lt 
wa
s 5
%
 so
 av

er
ag
e o

f T
1 
an
d 
T2
 is
 5
%
. L
ar
ge
 %
 d
iff
er
en
ce
 d
ue
 to
 sm

all
 n
um

be
rs.
 U
nli
ke
ly 
to
 m
ee
t t
ar
ge
t o
f 3
%
. S
co
re
 of
 ze
ro
 in
 Tr
an
ch
e 3

 re
qu
ire
d 
to
 m
ee
t e
nd
 

of 
ye
ar
 ta
rg
et
. D
isc
us
sio
ns
 w
ith
 Pl
an
nin

g 
En
for
ce
me

nt
 w
ill 
lea
d 
to
 so
me

 jo
int
 ac
tio
n 
us
ing

 To
wn
 an

d 
Co
un
try
 Pl
an
nin

g 
Ac
t 1
99
0 
po
we
rs 
re
ga
rd
ing

 ill
eg
al 
ad
ve
rti
sin
g.
 A
 re
co
mm

en
de
d 
an
ti-
gr
aff
iti 
te
am

 w
ou
ld 

als
o t
ac
kle
 fl
y-
po
sti
ng
. I
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
s a
re
 ex

pe
cte
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
20
09
/1
0.

Th
em

e 
3:
 A
 P
ro
sp
er
ou
s C

om
m
un

ity

R R

R R

05101520

20
07
/08

Se
p (

Q2
)

No
v

Ma
r (Q

4)

02468

20
07
/08

Se
p (

Q2
)

No
v

Ma
r (Q

4)

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 Y
ea

rly
 T

ar
ge

t
 M

on
th

ly 
Es

tim
at

e
20

07
/0

8 

4 
of

 8

Page 18



PI
 R
ef
 N
o

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Me

as
. 

In
Ac
tu
al
 

07
/0
8

Ac
tu
al
 

Ju
ly

Ac
tu
al
 

Se
p

Ac
tu
al
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

08
/0
9

Re
sp
on
sib

le
 

Of
fic
er

Tr
af
fic
 

Lig
ht

   
   
   
  T
re
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 Y
ea

rly
 T

ar
ge

t
 M

on
th

ly 
Es

tim
at

e
20

07
/0

8 

Str
ate

gic
30

8
16
 to
 1
8 
ye
ar
 ol
ds
 w
ho
 ar
e n

ot
 

in 
ed
uc
at
ion
, e
mp

loy
me

nt
 or
 

tra
ini
ng
 (N

EE
T)

Cu
mu

lat
ive
 m
ea
su
re

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

%
8.
2

9.
9

10
.9

6.
7

7.
14

7
Ma
ry
 D
ur
kin

Str
ate

gic
31

1
Ov
er
all
 E
mp

loy
me

nt
 ra
te
 

(w
or
kin
g-
ag
e)

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e H

IG
H

%
58
.4

56
.9

56
.9

58
.4

54
54

Su
e H

ind
s

Str
ate

gic
31

2
W
or
kin
g 
ag
e p

eo
ple
 on

 ou
t o
f 

wo
rk
 b
en
efi
ts

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

%
17
.4

N/
A

19
.7

17
.2

18
.3

18
.3

Su
e H

ind
s

Str
ate

gic
31

3
W
or
kin
g 
ag
e p

eo
ple
 cl
aim

ing
 ou

t 
of 
wo
rk
 b
en
efi
ts 
in 
th
e w

or
st 

pe
rfo
rm
ing

 n
eig
hb
ou
rh
oo
ds

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

%
27
.1

N/
A

N/
A

26
.8

29
29

Su
e H

ind
s

G
R
EE

N

Str
ate

gic
31

5
Ac
hie
ve
me

nt
 of
 at
 le
as
t 7
8 

po
int
s a
cro

ss
 th
e E

ar
ly 
Ye
ar
s 

Fo
un
da
tio
n 
St
ag
e w

ith
 at
 le
as
t 6
 

in 
ea
ch
 of
 th
e s
ca
les
 in
 Pe

rso
na
l 

So
cia
l a
nd
 E
mo

tio
na
l 

De
ve
lop
me

nt
 an

d 
Co
mm

un
ica
tio
n,
 La
ng
ua
ge
 an

d 
Lit
er
ac
y

%
38
.9

N/
A

40
.4

40
.4

43
.5

43
.5

He
len
 Je
nn
er

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 4
0.
4%

 of
 ch
ild
re
n 
ac
hie
ve
d 
78
 p
oin
ts 
ov
er
all
 an

d 
6 
or
 m
or
e i
n 
Pe
rso

na
l S
oc
ial
 E
mo

tio
na
l d
ev
elo
pm

en
t (
PS
ED
) a
nd
 C
om

mu
nic
at
ion
, L
an
gu
ag
e a

nd
 Li
te
ra
cy
 (C
LL
) i
n 
th
e f
ou
nd
at
ion
 

St
ag
e p

ro
file
 fo
r A
ca
de
mi
c y
ea
r 0
7/
08
 (f
ina
nc
ial
 ye

ar
 2
00
8/
09
). 
Th
is 
re
su
lt 
is 
an
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t o
f 1
.6
%
 fr
om

 th
e p

re
vio
us
 ye

ar
 an

d 
is 
pr
ov
isi
on
al.
 Th

is 
re
su
lt 
is 
su
bje

ct 
to
 ch
an
ge
 fo
llo
wi
ng
 u
pd
at
es
 b
et
we
en
 

sc
ho
ols
 an

d 
DC
SF
. T
his
 in
dic
at
or
 is
 co
lle
cte
d 
an
nu
all
y.

G G

G G R

G R

R

G

0%2%4%6%8%10
%

12
%

20
07
/08

 Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

50
%

52
%

54
%

56
%

58
%

60
%

20
07
/08

 Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

15
%

16
%

17
%

18
%

19
%

20
%

Ju
n (

Q1
)
Se

p (
Q2

)
No

v
De

c (
Q3

)
Ma

r (Q
4)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

20
07
/08

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

20
05
/06

20
06
/07

20
07
/08

Se
p 

08
/09

No
v 

08
/09

Ma
r 

08
/09

G

5 
of

 8

Page 19



PI
 R
ef
 N
o

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Me

as
. 

In
Ac
tu
al
 

07
/0
8

Ac
tu
al
 

Ju
ly

Ac
tu
al
 

Se
p

Ac
tu
al
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

08
/0
9

Re
sp
on
sib

le
 

Of
fic
er

Tr
af
fic
 

Lig
ht

   
   
   
  T
re
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 Y
ea

rly
 T

ar
ge

t
 M

on
th

ly 
Es

tim
at

e
20

07
/0

8 

Str
ate

gic
31

6
Re
du
cti
on
 in
 n
um

be
r o
f s
ch
oo
ls 

wh
er
e f
ew
er
 th
an
 5
5%

 of
 p
up
ils
 

ac
hie
ve
 le
ve
l 4
 or
 ab

ov
e i
n 
bo
th
 

En
gli
sh
 an

d 
Ma
th
s a
t K
S2

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

Nu
mb

er
N/
A

N/
A

5
4

1
1

He
len
 Je
nn
er

Str
ate

gic
31

7
Re
du
cti
on
 in
 n
um

be
r o
f s
ch
oo
ls 

wh
er
e f
ew
er
 th
an
 5
0%

 of
 p
up
ils
 

ac
hie
ve
 le
ve
l 5
 or
 ab

ov
e i
n 
bo
th
 

En
gli
sh
 an

d 
Ma
th
s a
t K
S3

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

Nu
mb

er
N/
A

N/
A

3
3

0
0

Ca
rm
el 

Lit
tle
to
n

Str
ate

gic
31

8
Re
du
cti
on
 in
 n
um

be
r o
f s
ch
oo
ls 

wh
er
e f
ew
er
 th
an
 3
0%

 of
 p
up
ils
 

ac
hie
ve
 5
 or
 m
or
e A

*-
 C
 g
ra
de
s 

at
 G
CS
E 
an
d 
eq
uiv
ale
nt
 

inc
lud

ing
 G
CS
Es
 in
 E
ng
lis
h 
an
d 

Ma
th
s

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

Nu
mb

er
N/
A

N/
A

3
3

1
1

Ca
rm
el 

Lit
tle
to
n

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 3
 sc
ho
ols
 ar
e b

elo
w 
th
e 5

0%
, f
or
 le
ve
l 5
 or
 ab

ov
e i
n 
bo
th
 E
ng
lis
h 
an
d 
Ma
th
s a
t K
S3
 as
 of
 D
ec
 2
00
8

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 3
 sc
ho
ols
 h
ad
 fe
we
r t
ha
n 
30
%
 of
 p
up
ils
 th
at
 ac
hie
ve
d 
5 
or
 m
or
e A

*-
 C
 g
ra
de
s a
t G
CS
E 
an
d 
eq
uiv
ale
nt
 in
clu
din

g 
GC
SE
s i
n 
En
gli
sh
 an

d 
Ma
th
s a
s o
f D
ec
 2
00
8.

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 4
 sc
ho
ols
 ar
e b

elo
w 
55
%
 in
 le
ve
l 4
+ 
in 
En
gli
sh
 &
 M
at
hs
. T
his
 re
su
lt 
is 
ba
se
d 
on
 p
ro
vis
ion
al 
re
su
lts
 w
hic
h 
ar
e s
ub
jec
t t
o c
ha
ng
e a

s r
es
ult
s m

ay
 ch
an
ge
 fo
llo
wi
ng
 u
pd
at
es
 b
et
we
en
 

sc
ho
ols
, L
As
 an

d 
DC
SF
. T
his
 re
su
lt 
is 
co
lle
cte
d 
an
nu
all
y.

R R R

R R R

0246

Se
p (

Q2
)

No
v

Ma
r (Q

4)

01234

Se
p (

Q2
)

No
v

Ma
r (Q

4)

01234

Se
p (

Q2
)

No
v

Ma
r (Q

4)

6 
of

 8

Page 20



PI
 R
ef
 N
o

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Me

as
. 

In
Ac
tu
al
 

07
/0
8

Ac
tu
al
 

Ju
ly

Ac
tu
al
 

Se
p

Ac
tu
al
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

08
/0
9

Re
sp
on
sib

le
 

Of
fic
er

Tr
af
fic
 

Lig
ht

   
   
   
  T
re
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 Y
ea

rly
 T

ar
ge

t
 M

on
th

ly 
Es

tim
at

e
20

07
/0

8 

Str
ate

gic
32

0
Lo
ok
ed
 af
te
r c
hil
dr
en
 ac
hie
vin
g 

5 
A*
-C
 G
CS
Es
 (o
r e
qu
iva
len
t) 
at
 

Ke
y S

ta
ge
 4
 (i
nc
lud

ing
 E
ng
lis
h 

an
d 
ma

th
em

at
ics
)

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

%
N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

6.
67

17
17

Ka
mi
ni 

Ra
mb

ell
as

R
ED

PI
 R
ef
 N
o

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Me

as
. 

In
Ac
tu
al
 

07
/0
8

Ac
tu
al
 

Ju
ly

Ac
tu
al
 

Se
p

Ac
tu
al
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

08
/0
9

Re
sp
on
sib

le
 

Of
fic
er

Tr
af
fic
 

Lig
ht

   
   
   
  T
re
nd

Str
ate

gic
40

3
Nu
mb

er
 of
 se
rio
us
 ac
qu
isi
tiv
e 

cri
me

s p
er
 1
,0
00
 p
op
ula
tio
n

Cu
mu

lat
ive
 m
ea
su
re

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

Nu
mb

er
33
.4
4

10
.2
8

14
.6
1

18
.5
5

21
.4

32
.0
4

An
dy
 B
am

be
r

G
R
EE

N

Str
ate

gic
40

7
Ar
so
n 
inc
ide
nt
s -
 N
um

be
r o
f 

de
lib
er
at
e p

rim
ar
y f
ire
s p
er
 

10
,0
00
 p
op
ula
tio
n.

Cu
mu

lat
ive
 m
ea
su
re

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

Nu
mb

er
N/
A

3.
81

5.
55

6.
56

8.
15

12
.2
2

An
dy
 B
am

be
r

G
R
EE

N

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 Th

e c
oh
or
t f
or
 th
is 
gr
ou
p 
is 
ve
ry
 sm

all
 (3
0 
th
is 
ye
ar
) s
o p

er
for
ma

nc
e o

f o
ne
 p
up
il h

as
 a 
dis
pr
op
or
tio
na
te
 ef
fec
t o
n 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
. W

e p
re
dic
te
d 
6 
yo
un
g 
pe
op
le 
ac
hie
vin
g 
5 
GC
SE
s 

(2
0%

) s
o w

er
e p

re
dic
tin
g 
sli
gh
tly
 m
iss
ing

 th
e t
ar
ge
t. 
Ou
t o
f t
ho
se
 4
 ac
hie
ve
d 
as
 p
re
dic
te
d 
bu
t 1
 of
 th
em

 le
ft 
ca
re
 af
te
r e
xa
ms
 b
ut
 b
efo

re
 S
ep
te
mb

er
 3
0t
h 
(O
C2
 co
un
tin
g 
pe
rio
d)
 so
 d
id 
no
t c
ou
nt
 fo
r O

C2
 

pu
rp
os
es
. T
he
 tw

o o
th
er
s a
ch
iev
ed
 4
 G
CS
Es
 A
-C
 an

d 
th
en
 at
 le
as
t D
s i
n 
th
e o

th
er
s, 
th
er
efo

re
 on

ly 
sli
gt
ly 
mi
ss
ing

 th
e t
ar
ge
t. 
W
e a

re
 ta
kin
g 
ac
tio
n 
to
 en

co
ur
ag
e t
he
se
 tw

o t
o r
e-
sit
 b
ut
 th
at
 w
on
't 
he
lp 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 th
is 
ye
ar
.

Gi
ve
n 
th
e n

at
ur
e o

f t
his
 ta
rg
et
 w
e w

ill 
no
t b
e a

ble
 to
 im

pr
ov
e o

n 
th
is 
ta
rg
et
 th
is 
ye
ar
 b
ut
 h
op
e t
o i
mp

ro
ve
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e n

ex
t y
ea
r. 
Me
as
ur
es
 b
ein
g 
pu
t i
n 
pla
ce
 ar
e:
 re
vie
w 
of 
ea
ch
 p
up
il a
t r
isk
 of
 n
on
-

ac
hie
ve
me

nt
, w

ith
 th
e d

ed
ica
tio
n 
of 
ad
dit
ion
al 
re
so
ur
ce
s w

he
re
 re
qu
ire
d 
(in
clu
din

g 
ex
tra
 tu
itio

n)
; n
ew
 tr
ac
kin
g 
sy
ste
m 
be
ing

 es
ta
bli
sh
ed
 to
 m
or
e a

cc
ur
at
ely
 tr
ac
k p

ro
gr
es
s a
cro

ss
 ke

y s
ta
ge
s s
o t
ha
t p
ro
ble
ms
 

ca
n 
be
 p
ick
ed
 u
p 
at
 an

 ea
rli
er
 st
ag
e.

Th
em

e 
4:
 A
 S
af
e 
an
d 
Su

pp
or
tiv

e 
Co
m
m
un

ity

W
e d

id 
als
o s
ign

ific
an
tly
 im

pr
ov
e o

ur
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e o

n 
pu
pil
s s
itt
ing

 at
 le
as
t 1
 G
CS
E 
fro
m 
63
%
 to
 7
0%

 an
d 
mo

re
 yo

un
g 
pe
op
le 
ar
e r
em

ain
ing

 en
ga
ge
d 
in 
ed
uc
at
ion
, t
his
 m
ea
ns
 w
e a

re
 d
oin
g 
be
tte
r w

ith
 th
e 

mo
st 
dis
ad
va
nt
ag
ed
 yo

un
g 
pe
op
le.

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 N
ov
em

be
r d
at
a i
s n
ot
 av

ail
ab
le 
ye
t. 
Th
is 
is 
Oc
to
be
r d
at
a. 
Un
for
tu
na
te
ly 
all
 d
at
a f
ro
m 
No
ve
mb

er
 on

wa
rd
s i
s '
on
 h
old
' w
hil
st 
va
rio
us
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 su
rro
un
din

g 
th
e n

ew
 IM

S 
(In
cid
en
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt
 S
ys
te
m)
 ar
e c
om

ple
te
d.
 Th

e F
ire
 S
er
vic
e e

xp
ec
ts 
to
 h
av
e t
hin

gs
 b
ac
k o

n 
tra
ck
 in
 D
ec
.

G G

G G

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

Se
p (

Q2
)

No
v

Ma
r (Q

4)

010203040

20
07
/08

 Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

051015

Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 Y
ea

rly
 T

ar
ge

t
 M

on
th

ly 
Es

tim
at

e
20

07
/0

8 

7 
of

 8

Page 21



PI
 R
ef
 N
o

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Me

as
. 

In
Ac
tu
al
 

07
/0
8

Ac
tu
al
 

Ju
ly

Ac
tu
al
 

Se
p

Ac
tu
al
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

No
v

Ta
rg
et
 

08
/0
9

Re
sp
on
sib

le
 

Of
fic
er

Tr
af
fic
 

Lig
ht

   
   
   
  T
re
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 Y
ea

rly
 T

ar
ge

t
 M

on
th

ly 
Es

tim
at

e
20

07
/0

8 

Str
ate

gic
40

8
Nu
mb

er
 of
 d
eli
be
ra
te
 se
co
nd
ar
y 

fir
es
 p
er
 1
0,
00
0 
po
pu
lat
ion
. 

(A
rso

n)
Cu
mu

lat
ive
 m
ea
su
re

Go
od
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e L

OW

Nu
mb

er
38

8.
84

13
.5
3

17
.4
6

24
.5
9

36
.8
9

An
dy
 B
am

be
r

G
R
EE

N

Ke
y t

o s
ym

bo
ls

Ar
row

 up
Ar

row
 ac

ros
s

Ar
row

 do
wn

No
 ar

row
Co

lou
r

Mo
nt
hl
y 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
 N
ov
em

be
r d
at
a i
s n
ot
 av

ail
ab
le 
ye
t. 
Th
is 
is 
Oc
to
be
r d
at
a. 
Un
for
tu
na
te
ly 
all
 d
at
a f
ro
m 
No
ve
mb

er
 on

wa
rd
s i
s '
on
 h
old
' w
hil
st 
va
rio
us
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 su
rro
un
din

g 
th
e n

ew
 IM

S 
(In
cid
en
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt
 S
ys
te
m)
 ar
e c
om

ple
te
d.
 Th

e F
ire
 S
er
vic
e e

xp
ec
ts 
to
 h
av
e t
hin

gs
 b
ac
k o

n 
tra
ck
 in
 D
ec
.

Co
lou

r re
pre

se
nts

 w
he

the
r p

erf
orm

an
ce

 is
 O

n T
arg

et 
(G

ree
n),

 O
ff T

arg
et 

(R
ed

), o
r w

he
the

r p
erf

orm
an

ce
 is

 of
f ta

rge
t, b

ut 
wil

l re
tur

n t
o t

arg
et 

(A
mb

er)
.

Oc
tag

on
 sh

ap
e r

ep
res

en
ts 

Tra
ffic

 Li
gh

t fo
r p

rev
iou

s p
eri

od
. T

he
 tw

o m
os

t re
ce

nt 
rep

ort
ing

 pe
rio

ds
 ar

e s
ho

wn
.

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ha

s i
mp

rov
ed

 si
nc

e t
he

 la
st 

co
mp

ara
ble

 pe
rio

d (
for

 cu
mu

lat
ive

 in
dic

ato
rs 

e.g
. li
bra

ry 
vis

its
 w
e c

om
pa

re 
to 

the
 sa

me
 pe

rio
d l

as
t y

ea
r).

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

ain
tai

ne
d s

inc
e t

he
 la

st 
co

mp
ara

ble
 pe

rio
d (

for
 cu

mu
lat

ive
 in

dic
ato

rs 
we

 co
mp

are
 to

 th
e s

am
e p

eri
od

 la
st 

ye
ar)

.
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ha
s d

ete
rio

rat
ed

 si
nc

e t
he

 la
st 

co
mp

ara
ble

 pe
rio

d (
for

 cu
mu

lat
ive

 in
dic

ato
rs 

we
 co

mp
are

 to
 th

e s
am

e p
eri

od
 la

st 
ye

ar)
.

No
 pr

ev
iou

s d
ata

 to
 co

mp
are

 to
 (fo

r c
um

ula
tiv
e i

nd
ica

tor
s w

e c
an

 on
ly 
co

mp
are

 to
 th

e s
am

e p
eri

od
 th

e p
rev

iou
s y

ea
r)

G
G

010203040

20
07
/08

 Ma
y

Ju
n

(Q
1)

Ju
l

Se
p

(Q
2)

No
v

De
c

(Q
3)

Ja
n

Ma
r

(Q
4)

8 
of

 8

Page 22


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	8.1 Tower Hamlets Index  - Monitoring Report October-November 2009
	Appendix 1 THI Oct-Nov 2008


